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THROUGH ARIZONA

MESA maricopamaricolaMaricopa county arizona
may 14 1894

leaving thatcher graham county
arizona on the 3rdard dinst I1 traveled 48
miles to bowie station on the southern
pacific railway while crossing the
so called big hollow where the mail
coach was robbed a few months ago a
number of men on foot hovelhove in sight
on the brow of the hill ahead of cisas
As we had just been conversing about
the recent robbery our first impression
was that they were highwaymen and
that we had better prepare for the
worst one young man who was re-
turning from the mines with consider-
able money about his person instinc-
tively drew out his fat pocket book
and stuck it into an empty mail sack
lying at his leetfeet remarking while doing
so that the robbers would not be very
apt to look for booty in an empty mail
sackck A few moments later as the sup-
posed robbers came nearer we could
seeme they were mexicans marching along
in single file and when they came up
evenbevc with the coach sure enough they
motioned to the driver to stop but in-
stead of commanding us to hold up
handsbands they asked politely for something
Wto eat as they were hungry having
waked already a long distance A
portionpardon of our lunches were readily

tided out and we continued our jour
vaaft bluch relieved particularly our
young friend with the money on our
krivaarrival at the station we learned that on
tint very day had corncom

on a branch road which is
awnbeing bilt fromfim bowie station to sol

ville and tthathat it was expected to
have cars running into the latter place
byitte arst of july next this will bring
our settlements on the gila within easy

of the railroad solomononvilleville
being within five miles from layton the
nearest mormon town

A railway 67 me
where bishop peter A lof

greeli met me with a team and took me
orbi shomehome on the san pedro river
the nextext day may ath we held a
specialial meeting at st david and at-
tendedtendedatoto the usual labor of gathering
historical information

TUthe st david ward embraces all the
saintssaina residing on the san pedro river
ouabering 37 families or souls
qwin families reside on tthee townsite
of st jdaviddavid while the remainder live
ia condition both above and
below the settlement extending north
weand couth about ten miles the upper

of tilethe settlement is known as mac
donad thus named in honor of presi-
dent alexander F Macdonald now of

for a short time from 1883 to
1685 an organized ward of ththatat name

aked but owing to the smallness of
the membership it was amalgamated
with the st david ward the village
ostaist david is situated on rising ground
abut halfbalf a mile east of the san pedro
raw and one mile from the flag station
catbe railway on the opposite side of
that afistreameam it is seven miles southeastoe and 55 miles southeast from
the old mexican town tucson about 37
axmilesks due north of the boundary line
betweenmarm the united states and mexico

one hundred miles by nearest
mead southwest of thatcherThatcherthethe

rs 0of theestst joseph stake to
Vucb ththe0 Sstt david ward belongs it

is the southernmost of all the settle-
ments of the saints in the united states
being situated south of 32 north lati-
tude the altitude is about feet
st david was first settled by philemon
C merrill and company inin 1877 and or-
ganized as a ward in 1882 it was
named st david in honor of apostle
david W patton who was martyredmarty red in
missouri in 1838 when the st joseph
stake of zion was organized in 1883
st david was made the headquarters
of the same but a few years later when
the bulk otof the membership was found
to be on the gila river and president
christopher laytonlaylon moved over there
thatcher in graham county became
headquarters the facilities for large
settlements on the san pedro are
limited through scarcity of water the
river which flows in a deep channel is
asoalso hard to control if flowing wells
prove a success in this part of the
country which is fondly anticipated it
will open up a bright and prosperous
future for st david on the irth of
february last joseph A and john K
mcrae and grandsons of the late
bishop alexander mcrae of salt lake
city obtained a beautiful artesian flow
which so far as is known was the first
of its kind in the territory of arizona
the sank a two inch pipe and
struck the water at a depth of 2 76 feet
the flow which increases steadily is
about gallons per day the
same parties are now sinking a six inch
pipe near by their first well and all the
people are anxiously awaiting further
developments this pioneer artesian
well is about three miles north of the
st david townsite in a neighborhood
known as marcus a part of the st
david ward

the san pedro riverriver rises in mexico
beyond the sierra de san jose takes a
northwesterly coursecourse and finally puts
into the gila about one hundred miles
northwest of st david the
valley of the san pedro reckon
ing from line on the
to a point where it enters a box canyon
on the northwest is about 55 miles
long at the point where st david is
situated11 it is nearly 18 miles wide but
the lower valley aiom the base of the
mesa on the east to the mesa on the
west is only about three miles wide
the huachucaHuachuca mountains on the south-
west the whitestone ditto on the west
the dragoondragaan range on the east and the
gallaro mountains on the north define
the shape and extent of the san pedro
valley the point on the river where
the mormon tatbattalionbattaliotalio boys had their
famous fight with the buffalosbuffaloebuffalos is about
30 miles south of st david but the
comcommandingcommandmandinin continuing its historical
march toward tucson passed within
two or three miles of where st david
now stands

from st david I1 returned to benson
where I1 boarded the train and traveled

miles via tucson to maricopamaricolaMaricopa
station from there I1 went by train on
the maricopamaricolaMaricopa and phoenix railroad 27
miles to tempotempe on salt river this
place is 9 miles southeast of phoenix
the capital of arizona from deippe I1
traveled by stage 7 miles east to mesa
the headquarters of the maricopamaricolaMaricopa stake
of zion where elder george
made me comfortable in his hospitable
home

since my arrival inid this part of the
country I1 have been busily engaged I1

writing the history of the maricopamaricolaMaricopa I1

stake of zion which comprises five or-
ganized wards with a total membership
of 2446 souls of this number 1219 are
indians who belong to the papago
ward and the southern mission

the principal mormon settlement on
salt river is mesa which is situated on
a level bench or mesa that is about 3030
feet higher than the river bottom below
mesa is a regularly laid out town con-
taining beautiful orchards lovely wine
yards fine brick residences and a thrifty
population the strength of the mesa
ward is 97 families or souls but
besides these there are quite a number
of non mormonscormons the pride of mesa is
the zenos operativecooperativeco mercantile insti-
tution which was run very successfully
for many years by elder george
it has always paid its shareholders a
good dividend and been a great help to
the saints in this locality mesa was
first settled in 1877 principally by saints
from bear lake county idaho

lehi ward is situated about 3 miles
northeast of mesa it comprises 29 fam-
ilies or souls of saints who livelivar
scattered on their respective home-
steads thos E jones isis the bishop
and elders edward E jones and thos
P biggs are his coucounselorsdelors this is
the oldest settlement of the saints orton
salt river it was founded by dan W
jones and company in 18781879 some of
the first settlers still iliveive here among
whom elder henry C rogers first
counselor in the stake presidency

papago ward lies immediately north
of the lehi ward it comprisesgom rises at prospres
ent indians 1 mostly aimaspimasi mas and 4A
families or 26 souls of white people
among whom george F tiffany the
bishop his only counselor is

valenzuela one of the most antel
indians that I1 have ever metmet he

speaks spanish fluently besides the
papago and maricopamaricolaMaricopa languages he
also understands english but does not
like to speak it besides the indians
belonging to the ward directly there
are baptized indians who roam over
the desert on the south elder henry C
rogers has immediate charge of
and visits them in connection with
elder valenzuela as often as circum-
stances will permit sunday schools
and meetings are held regularly in the
papago ward school house which was
built a few years ago on the corner of a
school section one mile north of the
lehi ward house the indians farm
and raise stock some of them live in
pretty good houses and are learning
many otof the more civilized habits and
ways of their white mormon neighbors
who have been their friends from the
beginning

alma ward embraces a tract of coun-
try lying immediately west of mesa it
contains 43 families or souls and is
presidedresided over by bishop alexanderKhunsakerunsaker whose counselors are joseph
A stewart and amos hawkes the
alma meeting house a fine little brick
building and the best meeting house in
the stake is situated about xaii miles
southwestqt of mesa alma is an out

crowth of mesa the first settlers camecrowthfereere in january 1881 and the ward was
first organized june 15 1884

west of alma is the nephi ward con-
taining 17 families of saints or I1nolo10 souls
samuel openshaw is bishop with B
forland johnson and noah brimhall as
counselors daniel F johnson is ward
clerk the nephi ward embraces a
tract of country one mile wide and ex


